BRADWELL ON SEA, ST. THOMAS THE APOSTLE

TREBLE BELL  25 1/8 inches in diameter, c3.5 cwt in E#

ROBERT     CATLIN     FECIT    J744

Lettering ¾ inch.

SECOND BELL  26 7/8 inches in diameter, c4 cwt in D#

RT      CATLIN     FECIT     J744

Lettering ¾ inch.

THIRD BELL  28 5/8 inches in diameter, c4.5 cwt in C#

ROBERT     CATLIN     FECIT    J744

Lettering ¾ inch.

FOURTH BELL 29 ½ inches in diameter, c4.75 cwt in B# 

 
ROBERT     CATLIN     CAST     US     ALL     J744

Lettering ¾ inch.

FIFTH BELL  32 inches in diameter, c6 cwt in A#

THEODORE     ECCLESTON     ESQR      OF     CROWFEILD     IN     SUFFOLK 

    
GAVE     THIS     FRAME,      R     C     J744(one line)

Lettering ¾ inch.
TENOR BELL    36 inches in diameter, 8-0-10cwt in G#


THANKS     BE     TO     GOD     WHO     GIVETH     US     THE     VICTORY.

(on waist)                                                      19          48

(lower waist)                                   MEARS          STAINBANK 

Lettering  ¾ inch but lower waist ½ inch.

BELLS

The fourth bell appears to be maiden, the tenor has been lathe tuned and the remainder chisel tuned. The fifth bell has two false crown staple holes through the crown. The fifth bell has been quarter turned, the other bells have not. The front four bells have their cast in crown staples, the fifth the stump and the tenor was cast with an independent crown staple hole. Moulding wires are 3-2/2-3-2 on the treble and fifth bells and 2-2/2-3-2 on the remainder. The front four bells have an argent and six canons, the fifth has had its canons and argent removed, the tenor was cast with a flat crown.

FRAME

The 8 bell frame dates from 1744 and is inscribed



JOHN     WILLIAMS                              ROB      MEACHAM



       LONDON                                         THO      HUTSON




   FECJT     J744                                     CHURCHWARDENS

ESSEX BELLFRAME SURVEY
Possibly the oldest eight bell frame in Essex. Inscribed 1744, superb frame of good quality, nearly complete. Mortised corners, double pegged. All joints well pegged. Pickford type 6.D

	(6.D 1.5 times-A2.3,B1.1, K.3. 6.D secondary, surveyed 1993)
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


FRAME PLAN

The third and fourth bells swing north south on the east side of the tower, the third by the north wall. The others hang centrally in the tower swinging east west, the treble by the north wall then the second and sixth bells, the fifth bell being by the south wall. Two empty pits on the west side contained the former treble and second bells, both would have swung north south.
FITTINGS

The clappers on the front five bells have wood blocks, leather liners and are double bolted. The tenor clapper dates form 1948 and has greaser. The front four bells have two pairs of bolted straps, two argent bolts and four gudgeon U bolts, the fifth bell has four bolts through crown, two clapper bolts through crown, and four gudgeon U bolts. The tenor bell has four bolts through bell and a centre clapper bolt. Headstocks are of elm on the front five bells and cast iron on the tenor, which is inscribed Mears London.  Traditional wheels, stays, sliders and runner boards are fitted to all. Single hardwood pulleys are fitted to all. Plain bearings are fitted to the front five on plate gudgeons with boards over. Ball bearings on tenor. Clock hammer on fifth bell, has a spring arrangement with a nut on top.

CLOCK

Could not see makers name.

TOWER

On the west wall of the tower is the following:-








DANIEL  LAY








AND JOHN








BLACKWELL








CHVRCH WAR








DANS  1706


There are details of 6 quarter peals in frames.

Bettley & Pevsner record- Brick west tower of 1743, with arched windows, diagonal buttresses, and battlements, by S.Anderson and T. Gough.
HISTORY

Deedes & Walters record(p. 186-187), 5 bells, all survive


The remains of a ring of eight, of which the tenor and two trebles have disappeared. The latter were sold about 1872, being cracked; doubtless all were of the same date as the survivors. Tradition says that the tenor was sent to London to be recast and returned by mistake to Faversham,Kent; a claim was made for its value, and the amount was expended on the clock.(Essex Review, 1897, p. 207).


Mr. H.W.King has noted( in 1872) that “ the framing bears the names of Robert Meacham Thos  Hutson Churchwardens John Williams London fecit.”  He also states that he saw two uninscribed bells in the vestry “ awaiting hanging,” (but more likely awaiting the fate alluded to above).


T. R. E. Oct. 1552.  “ij bells the least in wayght by or  estimacio” xvc.  Also we have the first yere of the Kyngs mts  Raing that now is another bell xxvc  xli  wich bell was sold. . . to John Debneye of Colchester for xxijs the hundred.  S’m xxvjli xvs vjd. It’m in taking doune the bell broking and wayeing the same vjs  [ viijd].”  (Essex Arch. Trans. N.S. v. p. 230).

Morant (i. p. 377): “ 8 Bells.” He also states that in 1442 the chapel of St. Peter’s-on-the-Walls had “ a small Tower with two Bells.”  Muilman ( v. pp.363-364) the same.


On Sundays the three larger bells chimed for fifteen minutes at 8 a.m. Bells chimed for service for fifteen minutes, followed by “tolling in” for the last fifteen.


“Not in ringing order” (1904).


Thanks to Rev. H.T.W.Eyre.

Apparently the two uninscribed treble bells were unhung in the vestry in 1872. Tradition locally says that the two trebles are at The Lodge and Ordlands Farm. Deedes & Walters however records that the trebles were cracked.

The Essex Association report of 1914 records the bells as being rehung, John Taylor in their report of 2015 suggest that this work is by John Warner.
From John Eisel 20/05/07

THIS is to give Notice to all Lovers of Ringing, that on Tuefday the 9th of this Inftant October, the Stonham Society of Ringers will be at Bradwell near the Sea in Essex, where all well Wifhers to that Noble Art, may hear good Ringing on the new Peal of Eight Bells, lately caft by Mr. Robert Catling, of London, and hung by Mr. John Williams, of Stonham in Suffolk.

N.B. Mrs. Tinsley, of the Three Rabbits, is defir'd to prepare Beds for the above Society.

(Ipswich Journal, Sat., 6 October 1744)
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